
 

This institution is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 

Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
P.O. Box 1800, 244 Fair Street 

Kingston, NY  12402-1800 
Tel:  845.340.3556 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Immediately Following Audit Committee Meeting 

March 28, 2017 
Legislative Chambers 

6th Floor 
Ulster County Office Building 

244 Fair Street 
Kingston, NY 

 
 
1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Approval of the Minutes of the February 22, 2017 Meeting 
4. Approval of the Financials for the Period Ending February 28, 2017 
5. Committee Reports 

 Audit Committee 
• Approval of 2016 audit documents 

 Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund Committee 
• The Farm Bridge loan application 
• RLF update 

6.           Marketing 
 Contract with Hudson Valley Technology Conferences, LLC 
 Contract with Hudson Valley Tech Meetup, LLC 
 Luminary Update and Temporary Campaign Presentation 

7.           Ellenville Million Update 
 Approval of Façade Project  #2 
 Approval of Project Plans and Budgets for Parks 

8.           Education and Training 
 Craft food and beverage industry event  – March 29, 2017 
 Other upcoming events 

• NYSDOL Q&A (March 29) 
• Panel presentation at New Paltz Chamber of Commerce (April 13) 
• Grantwriting workshop (April 27) 
• Watershed Alliance Conference (April 29) 
• “The Business Case for Wisdom”  (May, TBD) 
• Webinar on Historic Preservation Tax Credits  (Summer, TBD) 



  9.        Sale of County Property Update 
 
 
 10.        Old Business 

 Reallocation of Ellenville Million funds 
 11.       New Business 
 12.       Schedule Next Meeting 
 13.       Adjournment 
 
 

The next meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ulster County Economic Development Alliance is scheduled for 
4:30 p.m., Tuesday, May 2, 2017. 



 

 
This institution is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 

 

 

Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
P.O. Box 1800, 244 Fair Street 

Kingston, NY  12402-1800 
Tel:  845.340.3556 

   

 

  

 

 
 

 

 MINUTES 
Meeting of the Board of Directors 

February 22, 2017 

 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ulster County Economic Development Alliance was held at 4:30PM on 
Wednesday, February 22, 2017, Ulster County Surrogate’s Court, 3rd Floor, Ulster County Office Building, 244 Fair 
Street, Kingston, NY. 

 

The following Board Members were present: 

 Julie Cohen-Lonstein Chair 

 Burton Gulnick, Jr. Treasurer 

James Maloney  Vice-Chair (arrived late) 

Hector Rodriguez   

 Kenneth Crannell 

  

The following Board Members were absent: 

 Ward Todd 

Robert Sudlow 

 

President: 

 Suzanne Holt  Director, Ulster County Office of Economic Development 

 

Chief Financial Officer: 

Christopher J. Rioux, CPA, Deputy Commissioner of Finance was absent 

 

Board Counsel:   

Clinton Johnson  First Assistant County Attorney was absent 

 

Staff – Ulster County Office of Economic Development: 

Timothy Weidemann 

Bernadette Andreassen 

 

Additional Attendees: 

 James DeLaune, Legislator 

 Jennifer Schwartz-Berky, Legislator  

 Julian Lesser, Luminary Publishing 

Bartek Starodaj, Luminary Publishing 

 

  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Julie Cohen-Lonstein at 4:34 p.m. 

 

UCEDA Board Packet 1 - 2/22/17 Minutes

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 5



Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 22, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

MINUTES 

Motion: Hector Rodriguez, seconded by Kenneth Crannell, moved to approve the Minutes of the January 3, 
2017 meeting.  A copy of said minutes is on file. 

Vote:  The motion was adopted. 

 

FINANCIALS 

In the absence of Christopher J. Rioux, financials were presented by Commissioner of Finance, Burton Gulnick, Jr.  A 
copy of said financials is on file. 

 

Motion: Kenneth Crannell, seconded by Hector Rodriguez, moved to approve the Financials for the periods 
ending December 31, 2016 and January 31, 2017. 

Vote:  The motion was adopted. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund Committee 

Timothy Weidemann, Senior Economic Developer, Ulster County Office of Economic Development, reported that at 
the meeting of the Revolving Loan Fund Committee which was held on February 15, 2017, the Committee approved 

the request made by Costas & Tate Insurance to modify the collateral which is assigned to their existing 
loan by removing the 2008 Nissan Sentra automobile from the lien and replacing it with several items of 
furniture, fixtures and equipment owned as assets by the business. 

 

Motion:  Kenneth Crannell, seconded by Burton Gulnick, Jr. moved to approve the modification of the 

Costas & Tate loan by removing the 2008 Nissan Sentra automobile from the lien and replacing it 
with specific assets owned by the business 

Discussion: The Chair entertained a discussion about the role of the UCEDA Board of Directors in final 
approval of loan modifications previously approved by the Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund 
Committee. The discussion resulted in no changes to the original motion. 

Vote:    The motion was adopted.  

 

Pending Loan Appliations: 

Timothy Weidemann, Senior Economic Developer, Ulster County Office of Economic Development, reported the 
following: 

 

 The Farm Bridge is seeking a loan for working capital and capital equipment.  An application is 
anticipated to come before the board at the March or April meeting. 
 

UCEDA Board Packet 1 - 2/22/17 Minutes

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 5



Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 22, 2017 
Page 3 
 
 

 Redstart Coffee Roasters is looking to open a new business at lower Broadway in Kingston and is 
seeking a loan for capital equipment.  A loan application for the same is anticipated to be 
presented at the next meeting. 

 

MARKETING 

Invoices: 

The following three (3) invoices from BBG&G for 2016 Marketing Campaign were presented for approval: 

1) Invoice No.  4096 for periods October 16, 2016 – November 15, 2016 in the amount of $9,473.08. 
2) Invoice No.  4113 for periods November 16, 2016 – December 15, 2016 in the amount of $4,561.25; 
3) Invoice No.  4131 for periods December 16, 2016 – January 31, 2017 in the amount of $5,324.01. 

 

Motion: Hector Rodriguez, seconded by Kenneth Crannell, moved to approve payment for Invoices 
Numbers:  4095, 4113 and 4131, in the total amount of $19,358.36 from BBG&G. 

Vote: The motion was adopted. 

 

Luminary Media: 

 

Julian Lesser and Bartek Starodaj, from Luminary Publishing, made a presentation outlining the objectives and 
strategy of their campaign. Julian Lesser entertained questions from the public (Jennifer Schwartz-Berky) regarding 
the specific process of how leads would be pursued.   

 

Motion: Hector Rodriguez, seconded by Burton Gulnick, Jr., moved to approve the 2017 Marketing 
Contract between Ulster County Economic Development Alliance and Luminary Media.  (A copy of 
said Contract is on file.) 

Vote:  The motion was adopted.   

 

ELLENVILLE MILLION 

Parks and Commissions Update: 

Tim Weidemann reported that both the Village and Town have provided their scope of work and timing.  They appear 
to be moving quickly on their timeline.  The have also provided Certificates of Insurance. 

 

Amendment to Extend the Contracts with Barton & Loguidice and Brinnier & Larios: 

The reports of the engineers were submitted to the Hudson Valley Pattern for Progress and have been reviewed and 
accepted.  The only amendment is to extend the term of the agreements due to the lapse in time between the 
completed reports and the initial date of the contracts. 

 

Motion:   Burton Gulnick, Jr., seconded by Hector Rodriguez, moved to approve the extension of the 
contracts for Barton and Loguidice as well as Brinnier & Larios. 

UCEDA Board Packet 1 - 2/22/17 Minutes

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 5



Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 22, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
Vote:    The motion was adopted. 

 

Motion:   Jim Maloney, seconded by Kenneth Crannell, moved to approve payment of the invoices of Barton 
and Loguidice in the amount of $15,000.00; and Brinnier & Larios in the amount of $15,000.00 

Vote:    The motion was adopted. 

 

Suzanne Holt updated the Board on the Ellenville Million. 

 

 

EDUCATION & TRAINING 

Suzanne Holt elaborated on the many events coming up as described on the agenda.  She will be speaking to the 
Saugerties Chamber of Commerce this evening. 

   

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There were no further requests for Privilege of the Floor.  The Public Comment section of the Agenda was closed. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Approval of the 2017 Contract between UCEDA Contract with Ulster County 

 

Motion:   Hector Rodriguez, seconded by Jim Maloney, moved to approve the 2017 Contract 

                            Between UCEDA and the County of Ulster contingent upon Committee and Legislative approval. 

 

Vote: The motion was adopted. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion:  Burt Gulnick, Jr. seconded by Julie Cohen-Lonstein, moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Vote:  The motion was adopted.   

 

Suzanne Holt made a proposal to move the next meeting of the UCEDA Board of Directors currently scheduled for 
March 7, 2017 to Tuesday, March 28, 2017 at 4:30 PM in the Legislative Chambers of the County Office Building, 
244 Fair Street, Kingston. Confirmation of the same will follow via email.    

UCEDA Board Packet 1 - 2/22/17 Minutes

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 5



Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 
Board of Directors Meeting 
February 22, 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 5:39 PM.  

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Ward Todd, Secretary 

UCEDA Board Packet 1 - 2/22/17 Minutes

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 5



Assets

Account # Account Name Amount
1002 M&T Checking 1 41$  
1003 M&T Equipment Reserve 227 55 
1004 M&T NOW 333,299 06 
1016 Cash with Escrow Agent 25,000 00 

Total Cash 358,528.02 

1115 Prepaid Expenses - 
Total Prepaid Expenses - 

1100 Accounts Receivable - 
1120 Due From Other Funds - 
1121 Due from Ulster County 75,000 00 
1123 Due from IDA - 
1126 Due from Town of Esopus - 

Total Receivables 75,000.00 

1200 Equipment - Office & Auto 59,024 75 
1200-00 Equipment - Unity Equipment 352,484 66 

1201 Accumulated Depreciation - Office (59,024 75) 
1201-00 Accumulated Depreciation - Unity (352,484 66) 

Total Property and Equipment - 

1280 Contract Advance - 
Total Contract Advance - 

Total Assets 433,528.02$  

Liabilities & Fund Equity

Account # Account Name Amount
1300 Accounts Payable -$  
1380 Deferred Revenue 109,488 56 

Total Liabilities 109,488.56 

1500 Net Assets 324,039 46 
Total Net Assets 324,039.46 

Total Liabilities & Net Assets 433,528.02$  

Revenues Month Ending 2017 Year to 2017 2017
Account # Account Name February 2017 Actual Date Actual Budget Budget vs. Actual

1600 Administrative Fees - Loan Funds -$  -$  10,500 00$  (10,500 00)$  
1601 Application Fees - - 400 00 (400 00) 
1654 Educational Events - - 5,000 00 (5,000 00) 
1720 UCIDA - Marketing Support 5,000 00 5,000 00 5,000 00 - 
1730 Ulster County Subsidy - - 125,000 00 (125,000 00) 
1745 U C  - Ellenville Million - - 900,000 00 (900,000 00) 
1780 Interest Income 7 03 15 02 100 00 (84 98) 
1783 Miscellaneous Income - - - - 
1784 Copier Reimbursement - - 1,800 00 (1,800 00) 

Total Revenues 5,007.03$  5,015.02$  1,047,800.00$  (1,042,784.98)$  

Expenses
Account # Account Name Amount Amount Amount Amount

1810 Bank Fees/Paypal Fees - - - - 
1820 Insurance - - 5,500 00 5,500 00 
1822 Miscellaneous Contractual Expenses - - 4,700 00 4,700 00 
1830 Marketing Campaign - - 95,000 00 95,000 00 

1830-33 Marketing - Educational Events - - 7,800 00 7,800 00 
1860 Office Expense 27 00 2,627 00 4,000 00 1,373 00 

1860-01 Office - Equipment Lease 287 91 552 22 1,800 00 1,247 78 
1880-03 Professional Fees - Legal - - 5,000 00 5,000 00 
1880-04 Professional Fees - Accounting - - 14,000 00 14,000 00 
1880-11 Professional Fees - Real Estate - - - - 
1890-00 Dues, Fees & Subscriptions - 10,000 00 10,000 00 - 

2005 Ellenville Million - - 900,000 00 900,000 00 
1620-00 Depreciation - - - - 

Total Expenses 314.91$  13,179.22$  1,047,800.00$  1,034,620.78$  

NET INCOME/(LOSS) 4,692 12$  (8,164 20)$  -$  (8,164 20)$  

Ulster County Economic Development Alliance - Operating Fund
Trial Balance

As of February 28, 2017

UCEDA Board Meeting 2 - Feb Financials

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 3







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March ___, 2017 

To the Audit Committee of 
Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc. 
244 Fair Street 
Kingston, New York 12402 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc. as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated March ___, 2017. Professional standards require that we advise 
you of the following matters relating to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated January 16, 2017, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is 
to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by management with your 
oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements 
includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Ulster County Economic 
Development Alliance, Inc. solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant 
to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the 
purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 
 
Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 
 
The engagement team and others in our firm, as appropriate, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence.  
 

D
ra

ft

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 11



 

- 2 - 
 

Non-attest services we performed included: 1) preparation of the Alliance’s financial statements, 2) proposing audit adjustments, 
3) review of the Alliance’s annual PARIS report, and 4) preparation of the Alliance’s Federal Form 990 and NYS CHAR 500. 
CJ Rioux, CPA was the management representative responsible for overseeing our non-attest services. 
 
Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices  
 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant accounting 
policies adopted by Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc. is included in Note 2 to the financial statements. There 
has been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during 
2016. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the 
methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial 
or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management’s 
current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s 
current judgments. 
 
The most sensitive accounting estimate affecting the financial statements is the allowance for loan losses. 
 
Management’s estimate of the allowance for loan losses is based on an analysis of loan balances at year end taking into 
consideration the current outstanding balance, history of payments and strength of the borrower’s financial operations. A specific 
reserve was calculated using this methodology. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for 
loan losses and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
  
Financial Statement Disclosures  
 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their significance to 
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc.’s 
financial statements relate to: loan loss, debt, unearned revenue, related parties, restricted net position, and commitments and 
contingencies. 
 
Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 
 
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements  
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements 
identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to 
prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  
We proposed no audit adjustments during our audit. 
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were brought to 
the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. There were no adjustments proposed by us. 
 
 
 
 

D
ra

ft

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 11



 

- 3 - 
 

Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to 
our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be significant to Ulster County 
Economic Development Alliance, Inc.’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the 
course of the audit. 
 
Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a letter dated March ___, 2017.  
 
Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. Management 
informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting 
matters. 
 
Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 
 
In the normal course of our professional association with Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc., we generally 
discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory 
conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the 
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Ulster County Economic Development Alliance, Inc.’s auditors. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, board of directors, and management of Ulster 
County Economic Development Alliance, Inc. and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
 
PATTISON, KOSKEY, HOWE AND BUCCI, CPAs, P.C. 
 

D
ra

ft

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank… 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2016 CO
 
 
Name o
 
Ulster C
 
Corpora
 
The Uls
promote
creation
econom
achieve 
and fin
marketin
with com
 
List of P
 
1. Suppo
 
UCEDA 
entrepre
“weeken
County 
UCEDA 
Ulster C
 
Under a
allocatio
develop
complet

 D
c

 M

 L
th

 M
p

ORPORATI

of Corporat

County Econ

ation’s Mis

ster County
e Ulster Co
 of wealth, 
ic opportun
its mission

ancial ass
ng, facilitati
mmunity, re

Performan

ort econom

renewed 
eneurs in 
nders and 
to consider
began dev

County. 

a contract w
on of $1M
ment initia
ed the follo

Developed 
ommunity’s

Managed re

aunched a 
he two mun

Managed re
rogram; 

This institut

U

ION MISSIO

tion: 

nomic Deve

ssion State

y Economic
ounty as th
to improve

nities for U
n by attract
sistance (i
on of capac
gional, stat

ce Goals a

mic developm

its 2015 
NYC. In 
visitors,” e

r moving th
velopment 

with Ulster C
M by Ulste
atives in t
owing activit

a “Parks 
s parks and

imburseme

study to ex
nicipalities’ s

eimburseme

tion is an equal op

lster County E

ON AND G

elopment A

ement: 

c Developm
e premier 
 the quality
lster Count
ting, retain
ncluding a
city building
te, and mun

and Measu

ment in Uls

marketing 
2016, UC

encouraging
heir busines
in 2016 of 

County, UC
er County 
the Ellenvi
ties related

and Recre
d trails; 

ent for histo

xamine the
sewer and 

ent to the V

pportunity provider

Economic Deve
P.O. Box 180

Kingston, 
T

GOALS MEA

lliance (UC

ment Allianc
location to

y of life and
ty and its c
ing, and gr
administrati
g and infras
nicipal partn

rement of 

ster County

campaign
CEDA exp
g people w
ss to the C
a print-bas

CEDA also a
Executive

lle/Wawars
 to the Elle

eation” pla

oric renovat

 feasibility 
water syste

Village of E

r, employer, and le

elopment Allian
00, 244 Fair Str
 NY  12402-18

Tel:  845.340.35

ASUREME

CEDA) 

ce (UCEDA
o expand a
 to foster st
communitie
rowing bus
ion of the
structure pr
ners and le

Progress 

. 

 to marke
panded th
who alread

County. Thr
sed Econom

administere
e Mike He
sing comm
nville Millio

an to guide

tions of the 

of intercon
ems; 

Ellenville fo

ender. 

nce 
reet 
800 
556 

ENT REPOR

A) acts as 
and grow b
trong, susta

es.  The UC
sinesses th
e revolving
rograms, an

eaders. 

in Meeting

et Ulster C
he campai
dy know a
rough a sep
mic Develop

ed the Ellen
ein to sup
munity. In 
on: 

e efforts t

Hunt Mem

nection or c

or its façad

RT 

the cataly
business fo
ainable, div
CEDA work
rough tech
g loan fun
nd collabor

g Goals 

County to 
gn to inc

and love U
parate cont
pment guid

nville Million
pport econ

2016, UC

to improve

orial Buildin

consolidatio

de improvem

 

yst to 
r the 
verse 
ks to 

hnical 
nds), 
ation 

tech 
clude 
Ulster 
tract, 

de for 

n, an 
omic 

CEDA 

e the 

ng; 

on of 

ment 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 11



 In partnership with Ulster County Tourism developed and implemented a 
marketing campaign targeted specifically at the Ellenville/Wawarsing community, 
which included development of print and web collateral. 

 
Finally, UCEDA continued efforts to market surplus properties conveyed to it by Ulster 
County, including 300 Flatbush Avenue, 25 South Manor Avenue, and Linderman 
Avenue Extension. In 2016, UCEDA evaluated several purchase offers on the Flatbush 
and South Manor properties, and entered a contract for sale of the Flatbush property. 
 
2. Increase visibility of, and support for, Ulster County economic development. 
 
As part of its 2016 Marketing Campaign, UCEDA completed the following activities, 
which promoted the visibility and support for economic development: 

 Sponsored the HV Tech Meetup, the annual CatskillConf, and the NY Tech 
Meetup; 

 Launched a new tech entrepreneur attraction campaign that provided free tickets 
to Ulster County festivals for tech entrepreneurs; 

 Developed online and print collateral for each of the two campaigns, including 
special-purpose landing pages, brochures/rack cards, and festival 
exhibits/displays; 

 Staffed tables at seven leading festivals from August through October; 

 Developed new promotional videos for campaign target audiences; 

 Advertised campaign messages through print and online sources; 

 A new web page was developed and launched in Summer 2016, coinciding with 
participation by UCEDA representatives at several festivals 

 
In addition to these activities, UCEDA hosted or sponsored three “Building Ulster 
County Together” breakfast events, which drew more than 200 attendees and a three-
part webinar training series for restaurant owners and managers. UCEDA also 
continued to promote its monthly “Featured Properties” to site selectors. 
 
3. Administer Revolving Loan Funds 
 
Throughout the year, UCEDA serviced 10 active loans as part of the Ulster County 
Revolving Loan Fund Program. Loan invoices were prepared and mailed to all active 
borrowers on a monthly basis. When necessary, UCEDA provided notifications in the 
event of late payments. Site visits were conducted for all active borrowers. 
 
 
 
 
 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 6 of 11



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A. D

 
B.  D

 

C. In

 
D. A

 
E. C

 
 

Define Majo
 Supp
 Admi

Determine th
Assess Ri
 Econ
 Admi

Risks 
 Confl
 Impro
 Impro
 Non-
 Loss 
 Negli

 
nternal Con
 Missi
 Polici
 Proce
 Board

Assessment
 Board
 Audit 
 Gove
 Annu
 Exter

Corrective A
a. Plans
b. Plans
c. Chan
d. Chan

This institut

U

INTE

r Business 
ort econom
nistration  o

he Risks As
sk Exposur
omic Deve
nistration o

licts of Inter
oper influen
oper influen
Repaymen
of Funding
gence in ag

ntrol System
on Stateme
ies 
edures 
d Oversight

t of the Effe
d review of 
Committee

ernance Com
al Reports 

rnal audit 

Action 
s developed
s adopted b
nge in perso
nge in polici

tion is an equal op

lster County E

 

RNAL CON
As o

Functions
mic develop
of Revolvin

ssociated w
re 
lopment 

of RLFs 

rest 
nce of proje
nce of UCE
t of Loans

g 
gency oper

ms in Place
ent 

t 

ectiveness o
controller a

e meetings
mmittee me

d when wea
by the board
onnel 
es and pro

pportunity provider

Economic Deve
P.O. Box 180

Kingston, 
T

NTROL AS
of 12/31/16

 

ment in Uls
g Loan Fun

with Operat

Low 
Mode

ect clients o
DA on proj

rations and 

of Internal C
and adminis

eetings 

akness is id
d and moni

cedures 

r, employer, and le

elopment Allian
00, 244 Fair Str
 NY  12402-18

Tel:  845.340.35

SSESSMEN
6 

ster County
nds 

ions 

rate to High

or involved o
ect clients o

program a

Controls 
strative fun

dentified 
tored by m

ender. 

nce 
reet 
800 
556 

NT 

y 

h 

officials on 
or involved

activities 

nctions 

anagemen

UCEDA 
 officials 

t 

 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 7 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank… 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 8 of 11



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
The Ulste
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________
Suzanne 
 
 
 

er County E

__________
Holt, Presid

This institut

Ulst

2

Economic D

__________
dent & CEO

tion is an equal op

ter County Ec
P

2016 INVES

evelopmen

____ 
O 

pportunity provider

conomic Deve
P.O. Box 180

Kingston,
T

STMENT R

nt Alliance h

r, employer, and l

elopment Allia
0, 244 Fair S
, NY  12402-1

Tel:  845.340.3

REPORT 

had no inve

ender 

ance   
Street 
1800 
3556 

estments too report in 22016. 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 9 of 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank… 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 10 of 11



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The Ulste
2016: 
 
Address: 
Property 
Purchase
Estimated
Date of A
 
Address: 
Property 
Purchase
Estimated
Date of A
 
Address: 
Property 
Purchase
Estimated
Date of A
 
 
 
 
 
________
Suzanne 
 
 
 

er County E

 
Description

e Price: 
d Fair Mark

Acquisition: 

 
Description

e Price: 
d Fair Mark

Acquisition: 

 
Description

e Price: 
d Fair Mark

Acquisition: 

__________
Holt, Presid

This institut

Ulst

201

Economic D

  
n:   
  

ket Value: 
  

  
n:   
  

ket Value: 
  

  
n:   
  

ket Value: 
  

__________
dent & CEO

tion is an equal op

ter County Ec
P

16 REAL P

Developmen

300 Flat
Office B
$          -
$1,235,0
06/10/20

Linderm
Vacant 
$          -
$    50,0
06/10/20

25 Sout
Office B
$        -0
$   418,0
12/09/20

____ 
O 

pportunity provider

conomic Deve
P.O. Box 180

Kingston,
T

PROPERTY

nt Alliance 

tbush Aven
Building 
-0- 
000 
015 

man Avenue
Lot/Undeve
-0- 
000 
015 

h Manor Av
Building 
0- 
000 
015 

r, employer, and l

elopment Allia
0, 244 Fair S
, NY  12402-1

Tel:  845.340.3

Y REPORT

acquired th

nue, Kingsto

e Extension
eloped Land

venue, King

ender 

ance   
Street 
1800 
3556 

he following

on, NY 124

n, Kingston,
d 

gston, NY 1

g real prop

401 

, NY 12401

12401 

erty in 

 

 

 

UCEDA Audit Committee

March 28, 2017 Page 11 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 1  March 15, 2017 

 

Ulster County Economic Development Alliance 

Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund 

Loan Committee Report 
 

 

Applicant: 

The Farm Bridge 

 

Date of Application: 

2/27/2017 

 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY .................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW ............................................................................................................ 3 

2.1 Description of the Company and the Principals ..................................................................... 4 

2.2 Owners and Key Management................................................................................................ 4 

2.3 Company Operations .............................................................................................................. 4 

3.0 PROPOSED USES OF FUNDS ................................................................................................ 6 

4.0 PROPOSED SOURCES OF FUNDS ........................................................................................ 6 

5.0 UNDERWRITING REPORT .................................................................................................... 7 

5.1 Adjusted Cash Flow Analysis & Coverage ............................................................................ 7 

5.2 Value of Proposed Collateral.................................................................................................. 8 

5.3 Net Worth of Guarantors ........................................................................................................ 9 

6.0 CONCLUSION ........................................................................................................................ 10 

7.0 APPLICATION TRACKING SUMMARY ............................................................................ 11 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 2  March 15, 2017 

1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY 
 

BORROWER:    The Farm Bridge 

James Hyland 

  750 Enterprise Drive 

  Kingston, NY 12401 

  Phone # 845-343-1761   

                              

LOAN AMOUNT:  $150,000 

RATE:  4.0%  TERM:  7 years 

Use of Funds RLF Loan Equity Bank/Other Total 

Purchase of capital 

equipment 

$150,000 $0 $50,000 $200,000 

Working capital $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

TOTALS $150,000 $0 $250,000 $400,000 

  

Security  A) Lien (first position) on equipment purchased with loan proceeds 

 

B)  Lien (subordinated) on additional existing capital equipment 

 

C)  Personal guarantee by Jim Hyland 

 

Jobs:  

Existing:         42 full time  8 part-time   46 FTE 

New:         6 full-time    4 part-time  8 FTE     

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 3  March 15, 2017 

2.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW 

 
The Farm Bridge is a NYS-registered B-Corporation, formed in 2015 with the merger of Farm to Table 

Co-Packers and Winter Sun Farms. The corporate mission is to support local farms and revitalize local 

economies by bridging the gap between producers and markets. The Farm Bridge has developed a 

unique business model, unlike other regional co-packers, which resolves inherent problems of 

seasonality and scale. Though it is young, The Farm Bridge has built on the previous successes of Farm 

to Table Co-Packers and Winter Sun Farms to achieve profits of $320,000 on total revenues of $4.2 

million in 2015. 

 

As the company looks ahead, it plans to develop product lines that satisfy demonstrated customer 

demand across several market opportunities, including value-added products, craft food products, 

institutional purchasing, online meal providers, and distributors and processors looking for supply-

chain transparency. 

 

Value-Added Products (VAP) – According to a 2016 report, nearly $300 million per year in fruit and 

vegetable waste could be diverted by developing processing infrastructure to enable VAP. 

 

Craft Production – Over the past 10 years, food consumption has driven dramatic changes in the 

marketplace, with the top 25 food companies losing $18 billion in market share, while organic food 

sales expanded three-fold. This shift in consumer preferences toward specialized, local and sustainable 

food products has created approximately $335 million in unmet demand for locally-grown processed 

food in the Hudson Valley alone. 

 

Institutional Food Needs – Schools, hospitals and other institutions have a growing interest in local 

procurement of foods and food products, but need year-round availability, suitable variety, and 

sufficient quantities – all at competitive cost. In the Northwestern US, a consortium of 56 institutions 

reported a 300% growth rate in local purchasing over a year. Closer to home, the Farm to Institution 

New England network reports that 9 out of 10 distributors believe that sales of local food to institutions 

will continue to increase. 

 

Online Meal Providers – Companies like Blue Apron, Hello Fresh, and Plated are at the forefront of the 

new trend in meal kits and recipe delivery services, and they are eager to expand their sourcing for 

local and sustainable products. Over the next 10 years, the meal kit market is projected to grow by $3-

$5 billion. The large providers have recently secured over $500 million in capital to fund their 

expansion to meet this new and growing market. 

 

Supply Chain Transparency – As regulations catch up with the rapid growth of the “local” food 

movement, they are demanding increasing transparency in the supply chain. Similarly, consumers are 

increasingly attentive to where their food comes from and associate “local” foods with higher quality, 

better value and improved safety. One major national restaurant chain is already in discussions with 

The Farm Bridge to source clean, local ingredients that can be traced back to their origins. 

 

To capture these opportunities, The Farm Bridge will seek out a strategic position at the middle of the 

market, offering a wide variety of copacking, production and processing services at a scale large 

enough to satisfy high-volume clients but small enough to maintain the flexibility needed to adapt to 

changes as the local food industry continues to mature. 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 4  March 15, 2017 

To enable it to achieve its strategic goals, The Farm Bridge is seeking to raise ~$5 million in new 

capital over the next two years. By mid-2017, the company seeks to raise between $600,000 and 

$750,000 to meet immediate equipment needs, make improvements in operational efficiency, and 

create a cash cushion for working capital needs, including growth of its sales, operations and finance 

teams. By early 2019, The Farm Bridge plans to purchase a new facility, add new equipment to 

increase production capacity, and build its sales/marketing and R&D teams to spur continued revenue 

growth. 

 

With these investments, The Farm Bridge expects to see revenues grow from $4.28 million in 2015 to 

$5.22 million by the end of 2017 due to an increased focus on marketing and sales. At the same time, 

process improvements and new capital equipment will increase efficiencies, holding operating costs 

down as revenues grow. 

 

2.1 Description of the Company and the Principals 
 

BORROWER NAME: The Farm Bridge 

                  ADDRESS: 750 Enterprise Drive, Kingston, NY 12401 

PHONE #: 845-343-1761 FAX #:  845-802-0374 

TAX ID#:    

Organizational Structure: B-Corporation   

  Borrower Size: 

Including 

Affiliates 

in 

revenue (2015) 

 
 

2.2 Owners and Key Management 
 

Name: James Hyland  

Address: 195 Huguenot St 

New Paltz, NY 12561 

  

Phone #: 845-255-1699   

SS#:    

% Owned: 100%   

Title/Role in Business: CEO   

 

 

2.3 Company Operations 
 

In 2006, with a small state grant, Jim Hyland founded Winter Sun Farms with the simple notion of 

making food from local farms available all year long. Jim's idea came from his experience freezing the 

surplus produce from his Community Supported Agriculture (CSA) share so his family could continue 

to enjoy local food during the winter. 

 

“I started my journey into local food chasing the wonderful taste and quality of the produce that our 

farms grew, but I was also seeing the struggle the farms were going through,” Jim says. “I was inspired 

by the food, but moved to action by the farmers and workers who were growing it. I was inspired to 

build a business that would support these farms and be part of the local food movement.” 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 5  March 15, 2017 

Winter Sun Farms started working with small local farms to freeze their produce and then distribute it 

through membership in a winter CSA program. By 2009, the growth of Winter Sun Farms and the lack 

of regional food processing kitchens led Jim to convert an old IBM cafeteria into a 30,000 square foot 

processing kitchen called Farm to Table Co-Packers. Besides producing Winter Sun Farms products, 

the kitchen offers freezing, pickling, hot-fill jars, packing and product development services to farmers 

and food entrepreneurs throughout the region. 

 

In 2015, Jim combined his two businesses to form The Farm Bridge, which is serving as the anchor of 

a food hub that fulfills multiple needs in the sustainable food community. The facility works with more 

than 60 regional farms in the preservation of their own harvests through value-added products under 

their own labels, and also sources from many of those same farms in the creation of an expanding 

offering of proprietary products for retail and institutional outlets. 

 

“I believe The Farm Bridge has tremendous potential to make a significant impact in the Hudson 

Valley, but we can also take this model we have created and spread it to other regions of the country,” 

Jim says. “I would love to see farming become a great career choice, not just a labor of love. I want to 

see families supporting themselves by farming, and for farmers to get as much out of farming as they 

put in.” 

 

The Farm Bridge works with an eye toward innovation and meeting customers’ needs, as seen in the 

development and success of its five-gallon 'bag-in-the-box' shelf-stable pizza sauce, made entirely from 

local tomatoes. The local products made at The Farm Bridge can be found all over the region: in local 

stores, farm markets, CSAs, colleges, restaurants and about any place where good food is served. The 

Farm Bridge has become a model both in New York State and across the country for how to operate a 

for-profit, sustainable Food Hub. 

 

The Farm Bridge will enable Jim to further his original mission of enjoying and providing local food 

throughout the year and has set the stage for future growth and for doing even more to support local 

farms. 

 

“Climate change, scarcity of water, and soil health will all play crucial roles in where farming goes.I 

think technology will continue to change and evolve farming, but one of the biggest changes will be 

people’s understanding of farming and the importance of food to their life and health,” says Jim. “We 

will continue to see a value shift to clean, healthy, source-identified food and I know we will have the 

farmers and entrepreneurs ready to respond to this demand in many diverse ways.” 

 

While The Farm Bridge’s own operations generate economic impacts on the local and regional 

economy, they also contribute in less direct ways. For example, The Farm Bridge helps farmers by 

providing access to new markets (shelf-stable/frozen/minimally-processed), which can mean the 

difference between a failing farm and a sustainable farm business. They help growing food processors 

by providing a fully-equipped, state of the art facility for contracted use, which can allow these 

business to scale up quickly and without the immediate need for large capital investments. They also 

support and guide growing food processors to help them meet the requirements of scale and of the 

latest food industry regulations, which can lead to a higher success rate as these businesses move from 

fledgling startups to viable food businesses. Finally, they also help regional and main-line distributors, 

restaurants and end consumers access local food products by serving as a single point-of-contact with 

the ability to aggregate from food producers to meet volume, quality and traceability needs. 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 6  March 15, 2017 

3.0 PROPOSED USES OF FUNDS 
 

The Company proposes to use the proceeds of funds from the UCRLF for a combination of capital 

equipment purchases and working capital for business expansion. Capital equipment to be purchased 

will enable the Company to close on pending deals with new or existing clients and to continue the 

expansion of its operation. The equipment to be purchased may include: a pallet wrapper, floor cleaner, 

scales, sealers, conveyor belts, high-speed server, metal detector, Keyence – coder, dicer, rolling racks, 

hot jar filler, label machine, food pumps, pulpier finisher, dicer/chopper. Working capital will enable 

the business to expand its marketing and sales operation by increasing advertising buys, attending 

events and tradeshows, etc. In addition, the availability of cash is critical to allow the Company’s 

continued growth in 2018 and 2019 as it prepares to move to a new facility or expand at its current 

location. 

 

Uses of Funds
Uses Amount

Capital equipment purchases $200,000

Working capital $200,000

Total Uses $400,000

FinancialAnalysis_TheFarmBridge_FINAL.xls  
               

4.0 PROPOSED SOURCES OF FUNDS 
 

The Company is seeking funding from two sources, including the UCRLF and NYBDC (SBA loan). It 

is anticipated that all sources will be debt financing. 

 

Sources of Funds
Source Amount Partic. % Interest 

Rate

Term 

(years)

Est. Monthly 

P+I Payment*

Est. Annual 

P+I Payment*

UCRLF (term loan) $150,000 38% 4.00% 7 ($2,050.32) ($24,603.85)

SBA/NYBDC $250,000 63% 5.75% 7 ($3,622.25) ($43,467.01)

Total Sources $400,000 ($5,672.57) ($68,070.86)

FinancialAnalysis_TheFarmBridge_FINAL.xls

* For LoC, assumes interest-only payments, ** Assumes full amount is draw n each year  
 

* Note: Terms for all sources subject to change until final commitments are issued 

by lenders. 

 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 6 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 7  March 15, 2017 

5.0 UNDERWRITING REPORT 
 

Based on analysis of the Company’s financials and other information provided in the loan application, 

this borrower’s request was evaluated to determine its classification under UCEDA’s “Underwriting 

Critera for Ulster County Loan Funds.” 

 

Our analysis indicates that the project is classified as IA+. This classification indicates that the loan 

exceeds the underwriting criteria, and that there is a high degree of confidence that the loan will be 

repaid. 

 

Adjusted Cash Flow Discounted Collateral Adjusted PNW 

CLASS QUALITY CLASS QUALITY CLASS QUALITY 

I Existing CF is > 1.0 :1 A 1.0+: 1 + >  loan amt. 

II Projected CF is > 1.0: 1 B .85 to 1.0: 1 - < loan amt. 

III Secondary (non-SBC) 

Source of Repayment 

C <.84 : 1   

  

5.1 Adjusted Cash Flow Analysis & Coverage 
 

Over the period from 2013 through 2016, The Farm Bridge has grown from $2,250,000 in gross 

receipts to $4,360,000 in 2016. In 2013, the business saw a net loss of $25,000, but since 2014 the 

business has been profitable, generating net income (EBITDA) of $255,000 in 2014, $453,000 in 2015 

and $171,000 in 2016. 

 

Looking forward to the next three years, the company expects to see continued sales growth, driven in 

part by new equipment purchases and additional sales and marketing staff funded through this loan 

package, which will allow the business to pursue existing sales leads. Projected gross revenue is $5.2M 

in 2017, $5.9M in 2018 and $6.7M by 2019. 

 

While sales are projected to grow, the combination of increasing COGS, depreciation and interest 

expense will put pressure on net income. In 2017, without the addition of new working capital, the 

business would likely be forced to seek short-term financing to meet cash obligations. 

 

Based on the “Underwriting Criteria for Ulster County Loan Funds,” Adjusted Existing Cash Flow is 

calculated as follows: 

  

 Earnings Before Taxes + Depreciation + Interest Payments = Adjusted Existing Cash Flow 

 

In order to be classified as a “Class I” deal, the guidelines state that the Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

must be >= 1:1, or, stated another way, that the Adjusted Existing Cash Flow must be greater than or 

equal to the total debt service payments. 

 

 Cash Flow Coverage = Adjusted Existing Cash Flow ÷ All Proposed Debt Service (P+I) 

 

In this case, as the table below shows, Cash Flow Coverage has exceeded the 1:1 threshold for all of 

the past three years. 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 7 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 8  March 15, 2017 

Statement of Cash Flows

2014 2015 2016

Earnings Before Taxes $254,980 $453,079 $170,983

+ Depreciation $0 $0 $0

+ Interest Expense $43,872 $51,073 $51,254

Adjusted Existing/Projected Cash Flow $298,852 $504,152 $222,236

Debt Service

UCRLF ($24,604) ($24,604) ($24,604)

SBA/NYBDC ($43,467) ($43,467) ($43,467)

Other existing debt service ($43,872) ($51,073) ($51,254)

Total Cash for Debt Service ($111,943) ($119,144) ($119,325)

Cash flow margin $186,909 $385,008 $102,912

Cash flow coverage 2.67 :1 4.23 :1 1.86 :1

ACTUAL

 
 

As a result, the underwriting criteria indicate that this project is classified as a “Class I” deal. 

 

Though the underwriting criteria do not require a review of projected cash flows, the table below 

shows that in 2018 and 2019, the business is also anticipated to generate sufficient cash to cover debt 

service obligations. In 2017, the projections indicate a cash short-fall, but it should be noted that the 

working capital portion of this application will allow the business to meet its cash obligations during 

the year. 

 

Statement of Cash Flows

2017 2018 2019

Earnings Before Taxes ($262,522) ($120,456) ($332,692)

+ Depreciation $235,317 $292,475 $774,256

+ Interest Expense $99,672 $113,088 $156,691

Adjusted Existing/Projected Cash Flow $72,467 $285,107 $598,255

Debt Service

UCRLF ($24,604) ($24,604)  ($24,604)

SBA/NYBDC ($43,467) ($43,467) ($43,467)

Other existing debt service ($99,672) ($113,088) ($156,691)

Total Cash for Debt Service ($167,743) ($181,159) ($224,762)

Cash flow margin ($95,276) $103,949 $373,494

Cash flow coverage 0.43 :1 1.57 :1 2.66 :1

PROJECTED

 
 

5.2 Value of Proposed Collateral 
 

This loan is secured by the following collateral: 

 

a) Lien (first position) on equipment purchased with loan proceeds 

 

b) Lien (subordinated) on other business assets 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 8 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 9  March 15, 2017 

 

c) Personal guarantee by James Hyland 

 

 

Collateral
Asset Type (See UW 

Guidelines)

Fair Market 

Value

Prior Lien 

Loan Amt

Available 

Value

Discount 

Rate

Discounted 

Value

New  capital equipment $200,000 $0 $200,000 50% $100,000

Existing capital equipment $489,013 $274,134 $214,879 50% $107,440

Accounts Receivable $372,021 $372,021 $0 20% $0

Inventory $284,724 $284,724 $0 20% $0

$0

$0

$0

$207,440

$150,000

$57,440

  

1.38

FinancialAnalysis_TheFarmBridge_FINAL.xls

Total Collateral Value

Value of UCRLF Loan

Excess Collateral Value

Coverage Ratio (LTV)

 
 

Based on the “Underwriting Criteria for Ulster County Loan Funds,” the adjusted value of the proposed 

collateral is $207,440. 

 

Since the value of the collateral is in excess of the value of the loan amount, this project’s collateral 

value is classified as “A.” 

       

5.3 Net Worth of Guarantors 

Name Stated Net Worth Adjusted Net Worth Credit Score 

James Hyland    

 
Since the adjusted net worth of the guarantors is in excess of the loan value, the adjusted personal net 

worth is classified as “+.” 

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 9 of 11



 

Loan Committee Report Ulster County Revolving Loan Fund The Farm Bridge 

 

Page 10  March 15, 2017 

6.0 CONCLUSION 
 

The Farm Bridge’s application exceeds the underwriting criteria set forth by the Ulster County 

Revolving Loan Fund, with a classification of IA+, the highest rating possible under the UCRLF’s 

criteria. While this fact may be sufficient by itself to justify support of the project, it is worth noting 

that the business has several indirect impacts on the County’s economy. 

 

By providing a local co-packing facility, which focuses on processing and packaging locally-grown 

products, The Farm Bridge fills an important role in strengthening our region’s agriculture sector. As 

an example, when a local farm recently had a major order for cherry tomatoes pulled by the customer at 

the last minute, The Farm Bridge was able to step in to cut, freeze and package the surplus tomatoes, 

which prevented a total loss for the farm. 

 

Additionally, The Farm Bridge serves as a valuable resource in Ulster County’s efforts to attract and 

expand food and beverage-related businesses. As small food or beverage manufacturers from the NYC 

metro area achieve success, they often must look for ways to scale-up, while keeping overhead costs 

low. This often leads them to look to the next ring of communities outside the metro area. And it also 

may lead them to look for a partner who can run their production operation while they focus on 

marketing, branding, sales and new product development. 

 

The Farm Bridge’s presence here helps Ulster County maintain a competitive advantage in attracting 

these businesses. They have the opportunity to contract with The Farm Bridge, at lower costs than 

setting up their own production facility. Additionally, these businesses themselves see an advantage in 

having a partner that can work with local farms to source ingredients, since this both reduces 

transportation costs and increases the resilience of their supply chain. 

 

As The Farm Bridge continues to grow, Ulster County has the opportunity to help shape and support 

that growth, and, in turn, to help support and shape the growth of our region’s food and beverage sector 

as a whole. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 4 - RLF Loan Report

March 28, 2017 Page 10 of 11





Roadmap and Strategy Overview for Temporary 
Campaign

Prepared for: Ulster County Economic Development Alliance
March 20, 2017

1

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 23



Confidential

Welcome.

Dear UCEDA Board Members:

It is our pleasure to present this strategy and roadmap document. This 
summarizes our observations about Ulster County from the kick-off 
meeting and engagement thus far, our review of existing marketing 
materials, and our ideas on how to move forward. 

We look forward to continued partnership on executing this marketing and 
communications strategy.

Luminary Media

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 23



Confidential

How will we use this roadmap?

The recommendations and observations included herein will guide Luminary’s 
communications work across all deliverables, including both the long and short term 
campaigns. We see this roadmap as an essential step in ensuring that both parties are in 
agreement on the principles that should guide all communications activity by Luminary on 
behalf of UCEDA. 

We ask that you review this document in detail and confirm the validity of our observations 
and recommendations.

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 23



Confidential

Table of Contents: 

1. Review of Four Campaigns and Messaging (summary of kick-off meetings and 
analysis)

2. Temporary Campaign Formats (how we’ll use formats of temporary campaign to 
advance campaign goals)

 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 23



Confidential

Section 1: 
What We Heard 

5

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #1: The UCEDA Brand

The purpose of this campaign is to advertise the services of the Ulster County Economic 
Development Office (OED). Important themes:
● Focus on getting new businesses outside of Ulster County to contact the OED. As 

part of general branding efforts, existing businesses will also be made aware of the 
County’s services. 

● Emphasize that the office is business friendly and “works at the speed of business.” 
The office helps businesses make connections with financial, regulatory, and 
community partners.

● Provide a face to the brand through team profiles and features on companies the 
OED has helped. 

● Professionalize/elevate the brand. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 6 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #1: The UCEDA Brand

Core Message: OED offers tremendous support to help businesses thrive in Ulster County. 

Tagline: Powered by Ulster. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 7 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #2: Film in Ulster County

The purpose of this campaign is to advertise Ulster County as a filmmaking destination. 
Important themes:
● Due to the recent tax credits, the County is a premier location for film production. 
● An existing network of support organizations is already here to support the industry 

and Ulster County has a rich history of hosting successful films. Future projects will 
only make this support structure stronger. 

● Local businesses can benefit by providing services to the film industry.  

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 8 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #2: Film in Ulster County 

Core Message: Ulster County is a proven location for film. 

Tagline: The Future of Filmmaking

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 9 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #3: Ulster County’s Food and 
Beverage Cluster

Due to its agricultural resources and proximity to major markets, Ulster County is a prime 
destination for food and beverage manufacturers. Important themes: 
● Owners have a strong opportunity to scale their business in Ulster County, e.g., to 

relocate their production facilities. 
● From speciality grains to hops, businesses can take advantage of proximity to a 

range of available agricultural products.
● Showcase existing food and beverage producers that are already succeeding and 

taking advantage of the County’s assets. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 10 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #3: Ulster County’s Food and 
Beverage Cluster

Core Message: Ulster County is a vibrant hub for aggregating, processing, and distributing 
local food. 

Tagline: Room to Grow.

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 11 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #4: Attracting Tech and 
Manufacturing Start-ups
There is rising interest in Ulster County as a location for technology start-ups. Important 
themes: 
● Strongest potential exists for niche manufacturers that operate at the premium end 

of their market. There are many examples, both new and established, of these types 
of businesses throughout the County. 

● Showcase existing manufacturers that are already succeeding. 
● Illustrate the potential for success through industry clusters in areas such as solar, 

lighting, upcycled products, and others. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 12 of 23



Confidential

Campaign #4: Tech and Manufacturing 
Start-ups

Core Message: Ulster County can offer you the community and inspiration to grow your 
business. 

Tagline: Hack Your Work/Life Balance 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 13 of 23



Confidential

Our Audience

Through our content, messaging, imagery, and media buys, we’ll focus on making business 
conversions from the NYC metropolitan area through strong calls-to-action. 

Primarily, we intend to drive inquiries from this audience to the Economic Development 
Office. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 14 of 23



Confidential

General Campaign Principles

Focus on attraction: showcase Ulster County as the place to start, bring, or scale your 
business, especially to New York metropolitan area where a conversion is most likely to 
occur.

Focus on film: In general, we will focus our efforts on Ulster County as the “Future of Film” 
(50% of resources).  
 
Geographic diversity: showcase economic opportunities across the County.

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 15 of 23



Confidential

Section 2: 
Temp Campaign Formats

16

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 16 of 23



Confidential

Overview
The purpose of the temporary campaign is to begin to publicize the services of the OED. 
Through targeted Facebook advertising, a landing page with a clear conversion funnel, and 
active social media use (with targeted post boosting), Luminary will aim to drive new 
inquiries into the OED from outside Ulster County. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 17 of 23



Confidential

1. Landing Page

Luminary will use this temporary landing page to drive inquiries to the Ulster County 
Economic Development Office (text sent separately). 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 18 of 23



Confidential

2. Social Media Posts

Luminary will manage and post on Ulster County’s Economic Development Office social 
media streams (Facebook and Instagram). 

This will require close coordination between Luminary. We recommend a weekly check-in 
to discuss events, staff activities, and potential tie-ins to the four long-term campaigns. 
Luminary will also make recommendations for any other pertinent posts. Upon, launch OED 
has asked to approve all posts before they are published. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 19 of 23



Confidential

2. Social Media Posts

In general, our posting will follow these principles: 
● Consistent (near-daily activity)
● Diverse Content (showing different aspects of the office)
● Interactive (quick response to any comments, feeling comfortable to post in the first 

person to put a name to the business)
● Creative (reveal the brand or activities in unexpected ways)
● Strategic (guided by editorial calendar and aware of content being published in other 

channels)
● Personal (intimate, feeling of getting an “inside look”)
● Use of multimedia, i.e. use of high-quality pictures, GIFs, and videos. This is 

especially important in driving user engagement given our target audience. 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 20 of 23



Confidential

2. Social Media Posts

As part of our content creation for social media, Luminary will create “off-the-shelf” 
content. This content can be part of a specific series to highlight content priorities. Ideas 
include:
● Spotlight on new Ulster County businesses
● Spotlight on OED staff members
● Lifestyle highlights (food, activities, etc.)
● General “Why move Upstate” focusing on pros of relocating
● Broader success stories (UCEDA helped secure $XX in state funding, food & bev 

sector did $XX million in sales last year, etc.)
● Spotlight on OED services and how they can help new and existing businesses

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 21 of 23



Confidential

3. Facebook Ads - Text

<following text on the photo>
Ulster County 
Room to Grow

Are you looking to start or move a business? 

<text for underneath ad>

Contact us to see how Ulster County, located just 90 minutes north of NYC, can work for 
you. 
<landing page link>

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 22 of 23



Confidential

4. Temporary Campaign Ads

Placements in Upstater and Chronogram (designs sent separately). 

UCEDA Board Meeting 5 - Luminary Presentation

March 28, 2017 Page 23 of 23



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 6 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 7 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 8 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 9 of 10



UCEDA Board Meeting 6 - Marketing Contracts

March 28, 2017 Page 10 of 10



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 1 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 2 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 3 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 4 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 5 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 6 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 7 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 8 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 9 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 10 of 18



UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 11 of 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank… 

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 12 of 18



Kiosk Project
 Period Highlight: 1

 1 WEEK PERIODS

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

Kick Off Meeting 1 1 1 1 100%

Village Accounting Set 2 1 1 1 100%

UC Permit 3 2 2 0 0%

Insure UC 3 2 1 0 80%

Clearing/Grubbing 8 1 0 0 0%

Drainage 8 1 0 0 0%

Base Shaping/Grading 8 1 0 0 0%

Foundation constructed 9 1 0 0 0%

Framing 10 3 0 0 0%

Trimmed and panels applied 13 1 0 0 0%

Roof shingled 14 1 0 0 0%

Finish applied 15 1 0 0 0%

Signage Ordered 0 0 0 0 0%

Signage Installed 0 0 0 0 0%

Apply for Reimburse UCEDA 20 1 0 0 0%

% Complete (beyond plan)Select a period to highlight at right.  A legend describing the charting follows.

ACTIVITY PLAN START
PLAN 

DURATION

ACTUAL 

START

ACTUAL 

DURATION

PERCENT 

COMPLETE

Plan Duration Actual Start % Complete Actual (beyond plan)

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 13 of 18



Berme Road Lot Pave Project
 Period Highlight: 1

 1 WEEK PERIODS

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

Kick Off Meeting 1 1 1 1 100%

Town Accounting Set 2 2 1 1 100%

UC Permit 3 2 1 0 80%

Insure UC & DOCCS 3 2 1 0 0%

Site Prep 10 1 0 0 0%

Crushed Stone Sub-base 11 2 0 0 0%

Ashphalt Binder 11 2 0 0 0%

Ashphalt Top 11 2 0 0 0%

Lot striped 15 2 0 0 0%

Parking Stops placed 15 2 0 0 0%

Apply for Reimburse UCEDA 18 1 0 0 0%

Actual (beyond plan)

ACTIVITY PLAN START
PLAN 

DURATION

ACTUAL 

START

ACTUAL 

DURATION

PERCENT 

COMPLETE

Select a period to highlight at right.  A legend describing the charting follows. Plan Duration Actual Start % Complete

Page 2 of 3

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 14 of 18



Berme Road Trailhead Project Budget

EM Funds Other Funds In-Kind Total

Materials $7,000 $0 $0 $7,000

Signage $4,200 $0 $0 $4,200

Labor $0 $0 $3,800 $3,800

Crushed Stone Subbase $1,530 $0 $0 $1,530

Asphalt Binder $13,607 $0 $0 $13,607

Asphalt Top $18,569 $0 $0 $18,569

Delivery of Stone/Asphalt $363 $0 $5,000 $5,363

Paver w/screedman and operator $6,700 $0 $0 $6,700

1 - Vibratory roller w/operator $3,400 $0 $0 $3,400

3 - General laborers $4,200 $0 $0 $4,200

Paver mobilization $0 $0 $0 $0

Roller mobilization $0 $0 $0 $0

Total $59,568 $0 $8,800 $68,368

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 15 of 18



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank… 

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 16 of 18



D.O.C.C.S. Rail Trail Project
 Period Highlight: 1

 1 WEEK PERIODS

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Kick Off Meeting 1 1 1 1 100%

Town Accounting Set 2 2 1 0 0%

UC Permit 3 2 4 0 0%

DOCCS Permit 3 3 2 0 0%

Insure UC & DOCCS 3 2 1 0 0%

Layout 5 1 3 0 0%

Clearing/Grubbing 7 4 0 0 0%

Signage Ordered 5 0 0 0 0%

Drainage 11 3 0 0 0%

Base Shaping/Grading 15 5 0 0 0%

Base Layer Applied 20 5 0 0 0%

Surface Layer Applied 25 2 0 0 0%

Fence & Gates Installed 25 1 0 0 0%

Cemetery Fence Installed 25 2 0 0 0%

Signage installed 28 1 0 0 0%

UC Road Crosswalked/Signed 28 2 0 0 0%

Apply for Reimburse UCEDA 30 4 0 0 0%

% Complete (beyond plan)Select a period to highlight at right.  A legend describing the charting follows.

ACTIVITY PLAN START
PLAN 

DURATION

ACTUAL 

START

ACTUAL 

DURATION

PERCENT 

COMPLETE

Plan Duration Actual Start % Complete Actual (beyond plan)

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 17 of 18



DOCCS Section of O&W Rail Trail Project Budget Changes

EM Funds Other Funds In-Kind Total

Materials (fence, gates, signs, item 4)$26,200 $0 $0 $26,200

Labor $26,800 $0 $30,800 $57,600

Survey $2,000 $0 $0 $2,000

Total $55,000 $0 $30,800 $85,800

UCEDA Board Packet 7 - Ellenville Million Update

March 28, 2017 Page 18 of 18


	00_Agenda_UCEDA_20170328 REVISED(3)
	01_Minutes_UCEDA_20170222_DRAFT
	02_UCEDA Monthly Financials February 2017_Redacted
	03_2016AuditorsReport_UCEDA
	04_LoanReport_TheFarmBridge_FINAL_Redacted
	05_UCEDA Temp Campaign Overview
	06_MarketingContracts_HVTech
	07_EllenvilleMillionUpdate



